
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  January 9, 2017 
 

The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a regular meeting 
at 6:00 p.m., Monday, January 9, 2017, at the District Offices, 500 Davidson 
Street, Novato. 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the District 
Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They are also 
available on the District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Note: All times and order of consideration for agenda items are for reference only. The 
Board of Directors may consider item(s) in a different order than set forth herein. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (PLEASE OBSERVE A THREE-MINUTE TIME LIMIT): 
This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the agenda, or to 
request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  Individuals will be limited to a 
three-minute presentation.  No action will be taken by the Board at this time as a result of 
any public comments made. 

4. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
a. Approve minutes of the December 12, 2016 meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
The General Manager-Chief Engineer has reviewed the following item(s). To his 
knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. The item(s) can be acted on in one 
consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar 
and separately considered at the request of any person. 

a. Approve regular disbursements, December 12, 2016 – January 9, 2017. 
b. Ratify payroll and payroll related disbursements, December 2016. 
c. Receive Deposit Summary, December 2016. 
d. Receive report - submittal of Financial Transactions Report (FTR) to the State 

Controller’s Office (SCO). 
e. Cancel Board meeting of February 27, 2017. 
f. Approve application from Ghilotti Construction, and authorize the General 

Manager-Chief Engineer to issue a one-time, temporary, Class I non-
domestic discharge permit for discharge of excavation and pressure test 
water from construction of the North Marin Water District (NMWD) recycled 
water pipeline expansion. 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 1 of 96)



6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
a. Receive update on implementation of the Post-Employment Benefits Trust for

District liabilities related to Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 45 (“GASB 45”) for Post-Employment Benefits Other than
Pensions, and GASB 68 for Net Pension Liability (NPL); review Investment
Guideline Documents (IGDs or Documents) prepared by Highmark Capital;
and authorize the Board President to execute the Documents on its behalf.

b. Review Board meeting start time, and provide direction, if any.
c. Receive correspondence from Marin Local Agency Formation Commission

(Marin - LAFCO): “Call for Nominations, Four-Year Term as Regular Special
District Member”; and provide direction, if any.

7. WASTEWATER OPERATIONS:
a. Receive Wastewater Operations Report, December 2016.

8. CAPITAL PROJECTS:
a. Collection System Improvements, Account No. 72706: Bel Marin Keys Trunk

Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Approve one change order in the amount of
$5,500.00, grant Final Acceptance of the Project, and authorize staff to file
the Notice of Completion.

9. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND REQUESTS:
a. North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA meeting, January 6, 2017.
b. North Bay Water Reuse Authority (NBWRA) meeting, December 19, 2016.

10. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:
These items are for information only - no action will be taken on these items. 

a. City of Novato – Notice of City Council Reorganization.
b. California Special Districts Association (CSDA) article titled “CalPERS Votes

to Increase Contributions”.
c. Article from Pensions and Investments publication titled “CalPERS board

gives green light to cut assumed rate of return to 7%”.
d. Marin Independent Journal article titled “Novato water meter reader fakes

data, customers’ bills spike”.

11. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Next Resolution No. 3105.

Next regular meeting date:  Monday, February 13, 2017, 6:00 PM at the
Novato Sanitary District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-1694 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make 
reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 2 of 96)



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
Board Meeting Minutes 

Meeting Date: December 12, 2016 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 6:10 
p.m., Monday, December 12, 2016, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President Pro-tem Carole Dillon-Knutson, Jean Mariani, 
William Long, and Brant Miller.  President Jerry Peters arrived at 6:22 p.m. 

President Pro-tem Carole Dillon-Knutson began the meeting at 6:10 p.m.  

STAFF PRESENT:  General Manager-Secretary Sandeep Karkal and Administrative 
Secretary Julie Hoover.   

ALSO PRESENT:    John Bailey, Project Manager, Veolia Water 
John O’Hare, Pretreatment Programs Manager, Veolia Water 
Brian Exberger, Assistant Project Manager, Veolia Water 
Erik Brown, Technical Services Manager, Novato Sanitary District 
Steve Krautheim, Field Services Manager, Novato Sanitary District 
Laura Creamer, Finance Officer, Novato Sanitary District 
Vikki Rodriguez, Maze and Associates  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

AGENDA APPROVAL:  The agenda was approved as presented. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 

REVIEW OF MINUTES: 

Consider approval of minutes of the November 14, 2016 meeting.  

On motion of Director Mariani, seconded by Director Miller, and carried unanimously by 
those Directors present, the Board meeting minutes of November 14, 2016, were approved. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

President Pro-tem Dillon-Knutson called for a motion on the Consent Calendar items as 
follows: 

a. Approve Board member disbursements in the amount of $779.26, capital project
disbursements in the amount of $5,441,331.72, and regular disbursements in the
amount of $417,527.01.  Ratification of November 28th capital project
disbursements in the amount of $54,813.15, and regular disbursements in the
amount of $36,951.49.

b. Ratify November 2016 payroll and payroll related disbursements in the amount of
$224,347.94.

Item 4.a.
(Pages 3 to 7)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 3 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



c. Receive Deposit Summary, November 2016. 
d. Cancel Board meeting of January 23, 2017. 
e. Authorize General Manager-Chief Engineer to approve a holiday schedule with 

closure of District offices on Friday, December 23, 2016, and Friday, December 
30, 2016. 

f. Approve Director Long and the General Manager-Chief Engineer to attend the 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Annual Washington DC 
conference, February 27 - March 1, 2017. 

g. Re-adopt District Policy Regarding the Provision of Service to Residential 
Developments with Affordable Housing Units, and ratify District Resolution No. 
2951 which adopted the policy. 

h. Approve the Household Hazardous Waste Grant Agreement with the Marin 
County Hazardous & Solid Waste Joint Powers Authority (JPA) for Fiscal Year 
FY16-17. 

i. Receive Fixed Asset Deletion Report for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16. 
 

On motion of Director Mariani, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously by 
those Directors present, the above listed Consent Calendar items were approved. 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE: 

 
- Receive report from the District’s independent external auditor, Maze and Associates. 
The General Manager stated that the District’s annual financial audit for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, had been completed by the District’s independent external auditors, Maze 
and Associates.  He stated that the District’s Finance Committee with Members Long and 
Peters, met on December 5th, and reviewed the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.  Further, the Committee received and 
reviewed the draft “Memorandum on Internal Control and Required Communications for 
year ended June 30, 2016, also prepared by Maze and Associates.  The General Manager 
introduced Ms. Vikki Rodriguez, Maze and Associates, who was present at the meeting to 
present the audit findings and opinion to the Board. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez presented an overview of the District’s Annual Audit and stated that Maze 
and Associates had concluded, based on their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for 
rendering an unmodified (unqualified) opinion.  She stated that the District’s financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 are fairly presented, and conform to 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  Ms. Rodriguez noted that the 
unmodified opinion is the highest rating given (cleanest possible opinion).  She stated that 
there were no significant accounting policies, and that the District adopted three provisions 
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement, which became 
effecting during the year ended June 30, 2016.  She stated that there were no major 
reporting changes, no new pronouncements, and no material weaknesses when internal 
controls were reviewed. 
 
- Receive Finance Committee report and recommendation, and accept the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, including: 
Fiscal Year FY15-16 audit, and audited financial statements for the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015. 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 4 of 96)



On motion of Director Mariani, seconded by Director Long, and carried by those Directors 
present, the Board accepted the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, including: Fiscal Year FY15-16 audit, and audited 
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
 
On motion of Director Mariani, seconded by Director Long, and carried by those Directors 
present, the Board received and accepted the “Memorandum on Internal Control and 
Required Communications for Year ended June 30, 2016” from the District’s independent 
outside auditor, Maze and Associates. 
 
President Jerry Peters arrived at 6:22 p.m. and the meeting continued under his authority. 
 
- Authorize staff to submit the District’s CAFR to the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA) for consideration of the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting.  The General Manager recommended that the Board 
authorize staff to submit the District CAFR to the GFOA for its Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR Award).  He stated that, if approved, this will be 
the sixth year in a row that the District has submitted an application for the award.  He 
stated that the District has received this recognition from the GFOA for the last five years. 
 
On motion of Director Dillon-Knutson, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously, 
the Board authorized staff to submit the District’s CAFR to the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA) for consideration of the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting.   
 
- Receive update on implementation of the combined Post-Employment Benefits Trust to 
address the District’s liabilities related to Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 45 (“GASB 45”) for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions, and 
GASB 68 for Net Pension Liability (NPL), and provide further direction, if any.  The General 
Manager noted that at its November 14, 2016 meeting, the District Board approved 
implementing a combined Post-Employment Benefits Trust with Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS), Newport Beach, CA, to address the District’s GASB 45 and 68 liabilities.  
The General Manager stated that PARS has provided the District with the necessary 
agreements and legal documents to implement the District’s trust program. District Counsel 
has reviewed these documents and they are now ready to be executed by the District.  He 
noted that at its November 14, 2016 meeting, the Board authorized the General Manager to 
serve as the Plan Administrator and execute all required legal and administrative plan 
documents on the District’s behalf. He stated that unless otherwise directed, he will execute 
these documents over the next few weeks. 
 
The General Manager continued, stating that at the November 14, 2016 meeting, the Board 
also authorized funding the combined trust program with an initial partial discretionary 
amount of $900,000 from the projected unencumbered available cash balance of about $2.0 
million (as of July 1, 2017) in the Operating Fund. Furthermore, he stated that the $900,000 
amount was to be divided into contributions of $700,000 to the GASB 45 portion of the trust 
program, and $200,000 to the GASB 68 portion of the program, with both contributions 
invested on a monthly, “dollar-cost averaging” basis.  The General Manager noted that as 
explained in further detail in the Board Agenda packet, PARS offers two “conservative” 
strategies that fit the Board’s desired 3%-5% long term investment goal for the District’s 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 5 of 96)



combined PARS trust fund, i.e. Highmark PLUS, and Index PLUS. Of these two options, the 
Highmark PLUS has an active investment approach utilizing actively managed mutual funds, 
while the Index PLUS has a passive investment approach utilizing well known index-based 
securities, including exchange traded funds (ETFs). The Index PLUS thus appears to be the 
more conservative of the two options. He stated that unless otherwise directed by the Board, 
District funds will be directed to the Index PLUS option, consistent with prior Board direction. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez left the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
- Receive Wastewater Operations Report, November 2016.  The General Manager 
introduced Veolia Project Manager John Bailey who provided an overview of the Treatment 
Facilities Monthly Operations Report for November.  The Project Manager reviewed the 
treatment plant performance summary and noted that there were no excursions or violations 
for the month.  He outlined the safety training that was completed in November, and stated 
that safety performance was excellent with a total of 2,381 accident-free days.  He reported 
that the average flow was 4.84 MGD (million gallons/day) with a peak hourly flow of 12.5 
MGD on November 19th.  The Project Manager stated that recycled water was produced 
only on one day, to top off the North Marin Water District (NMWD) Plum Creek recycled 
water tank.  He reviewed the period’s key events, and monthly safety and training topics.  
He noted that there were no neighborhood contacts in November. The Project Manager was 
also pleased to report that at the CWEA Redwood Empire Section awards dinner in 
November, Novato Sanitary District employee Aaron Hendricks received the Collection 
System Person of the Year 2016 award.  The Board congratulated Mr. Hendricks.  The 
General Manager and the Field Services Manager stated that Mr. Hendricks was well 
deserving of the award. 
 
Field Services Manager Steve Krautheim summarized the Collection System Operations 
report for November 2016.  He stated that the Collections department cleaned 68,399 lineal 
feet of sewers. He discussed the annual root treatment program that was completed by an 
outside contractor in August.  He stated that during routine follow-up maintenance in 
November, staff identified 19 line segments that were in need of re-treatment.  The 
contractor completed this additional work under warranty at no charge.  The Field Services 
Manager stated that 17 main lines were televised, totaling 4,261 feet, and that staff 
conducted 62 sewer main inspections, totaling 10,731 feet. He further stated that there were 
no lost time accidents in November for a total of 2,089 accident-free days, and noted that 
there were no sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) in November. 
 
The Field Services Manager then summarized the Reclamation Facilities report for 
November 2016.  He stated that the rancher moved all operations off site this month and 
that repairs and improvements were completed at the two drainage pump stations. He 
stated that there were no irrigation activities in November. 
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 
 
Director Miller commented on his attendance at the North Bay Watershed Association 
(NBWA) meeting held on December 2nd at the Petaluma Community Center in Petaluma.  
He discussed two presentations that were given: “Pharmaceuticals and Personal Care 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 6 of 96)



Products”, by Meg Sedlak of the San Francisco Estuary Institute, and “North Bay Trash 
Amendments/Storm Water Planning Project Update”, by Rob Carson, Coordinator for the 
Marin County Storm Water Program. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
The General Manager had the following reports and announcements: 
- As mentioned earlier by Mr. Bailey) Collection Systems Department staff member, 

Aaron Hendricks had received the 2016 Collection System Worker of the Year Award 
from the CWEA Redwood Empire Section, and congratulated Mr. Hendricks on the 
achievement.  

- Board meeting start time:  the Board periodically reviews its Board meeting start time.  
The current start time is 6:00 p.m., and the last time the meeting time was reviewed and 
adjusted was in 2012.  This topic will be agendized for discussion at a future Board 
meeting in January or February, 2017. 

- CASA Winter Conference in Palm Springs January 18 through January 20, 2017.  He 
noted that there are no available rooms at the conference hotel, so per CASA 
recommendation, rooms will be reserved at the Hard Rock Hotel.  

- The District will be closed on Friday, December 23rd through Monday, December 26th, 
and Friday, December 30th through Monday, January 2nd. 

- As in prior years, there will be no Board meeting in the second half of December. 
- The next Board meeting is Monday, January 9, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Peters adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
               
          Sandeep Karkal 

Secretary 
 
Julie Hoover, Recording 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 7 of 96)



Date Num Name Credit

Jan 9, 17
01/09/2017 4769 Dillon-Knutson-, Carole 207.79
01/09/2017 4770 Long, William C 783.26
01/09/2017 4771 Mariani, Jean M
01/09/2017 4772 Miller, Brant
01/09/2017 4773 Peters, Arthur Gerald 389.57

Jan 9, 17 1,380.62

Novato Sanitary District
Board Fees Check Register for December 2016

January 9, 2017

Item 5.a.
(Pages 8 to 12)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 8 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



Date Num Name Credit

Dec 27, 16
12/27/2016 60122 Pacific, Gas & Electric 57,394.42
12/27/2016 60127 State Water Resources Control Bd... 48,779.00
12/27/2016 60130 Veolia Water Recycled Water Oper. 24,569.15
12/27/2016 60128 Stericycle-(Previously PSC) 16,712.43
12/27/2016 60129 Telstar Instruments Inc 7,981.89
12/27/2016 60117 Lightning Services, Inc. 6,010.59
12/27/2016 60105 Duke's Root Control, Inc 4,403.37
12/27/2016 60120 North Marin Water District 3,423.44
12/27/2016 60112 Homeward Bound of Marin 3,290.00
12/27/2016 60102 American Express-21007 3,091.35
12/27/2016 60124 Rauch Communication Consultant... 2,108.41
12/27/2016 60119 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wil... 1,787.11
12/27/2016 60116 Leonardi Automotive & Electric, Inc. 1,604.43
12/27/2016 60111 Grainger 1,465.49
12/27/2016 60103 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 1,368.00
12/27/2016 60104 Calcon Systems, Inc. 1,284.00
12/27/2016 60115 Leak Detection Pros Inc 1,237.50
12/27/2016 60121 North Marin Water District Payroll 880.75
12/27/2016 60107 Environmental Products and Acce... 643.25
12/27/2016 60109 Frontier California Inc EQ 567.75
12/27/2016 60106 EEC 562.43
12/27/2016 60132 Wedge Roofing Inc. 450.00
12/27/2016 60131 Verizon Wireless- 444.28
12/27/2016 60118 Medical Center of Marin 200.00
12/27/2016 60126 Staples Advantage 196.84
12/27/2016 60125 Red Wing Shoe Store 180.24
12/27/2016 60110 Government Finance Officers Assoc. 160.00
12/27/2016 60114 Irvine Consulting Services Inc. 90.00
12/27/2016 60113 Honey Bucket 88.20
12/27/2016 60123 Petty Cash 54.26
12/27/2016 60108 First Alarm 39.91

Dec 27, 16 191,068.49

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Check Register

December 27, 2016

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 9 of 96)



Date Num Name Credit

Jan 9, 17
01/09/2017 60144 CSRMA- 107,762.11
01/09/2017 60162 Stericycle-(Previously PSC) 16,140.44
01/09/2017 60165 U.S. Bank Card (3)Craig 7,224.13
01/09/2017 60152 Johnson, Dee 6,570.00
01/09/2017 60139 Caltest Analytical Lab Inc. 6,132.25
01/09/2017 60136 Beecher Engineering,Inc 5,180.00
01/09/2017 60166 Veolia Water North America, Inc. 3,944.36
01/09/2017 60145 Delta Dental 2,821.19
01/09/2017 60153 Liebert, Cassidy, Whitmore 2,300.00
01/09/2017 60156 Monterey Mechanical, Inc. 1,800.00
01/09/2017 60148 Frontier Communications of CA 1,671.22
01/09/2017 60155 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wil... 1,528.00
01/09/2017 60161 SMART 1,491.90
01/09/2017 60141 Cintas Corporation 1,270.20
01/09/2017 60151 Jan-Pro Cleaning Systems 1,005.00
01/09/2017 60143 Control Systems West, Inc. 852.00
01/09/2017 60168 Verizon Wireless- 842.45
01/09/2017 60164 T & B Sports, Inc 645.90
01/09/2017 60169 Vision Service Plan 570.58
01/09/2017 60154 Marin/Sonoma Mosquito Dist 482.37
01/09/2017 60140 Central Marin Sanitation District 447.45
01/09/2017 60147 Evoqua Water Technologies - Lab 379.36
01/09/2017 60170 VWR International Inc. 305.79
01/09/2017 60142 Claremont EAP, Inc. 250.00
01/09/2017 60137 BoundTree Medical, LLC 248.39
01/09/2017 60159 Pini Hardware 233.64
01/09/2017 60167 Veolia Water North America, Lab 184.13
01/09/2017 60149 Grainger 135.02
01/09/2017 60135 Batteries Plus     Inc 125.09
01/09/2017 60146 Environmental Products and Acce... 121.74
01/09/2017 60160 R & B Company 117.86
01/09/2017 60163 Stevenson, Jeffrey  MD 85.00
01/09/2017 60134 AT&T Mobility 79.28
01/09/2017 60133 American Messaging 69.02
01/09/2017 60138 CalChamber 50.91
01/09/2017 60150 Integrity Shred LLC 50.00
01/09/2017 60158 North Marin Water District 38.85
01/09/2017 60157 North Marin Auto Parts 34.78

Jan 9, 17 173,190.41

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Check Register

January 9, 2017

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 10 of 96)



Date Num Name Credit

Dec 27, 16
12/27/2016 3117 Michels Corporation 313,399.30
12/27/2016 3118 RMC Water & Environment, Inc. 29,049.01
12/27/2016 3115 Engineering Solutions Services 4,535.00
12/27/2016 3116 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & ... 350.00

Dec 27, 16 347,333.31

Novato Sanitary District
Capital Projects Check Register

December 27, 2016

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 11 of 96)



Date Num Name Credit

Jan 9, 17
01/09/2017 3119 Bank of New York Mellon 1,292,873.75
01/09/2017 3122 Stiles Construction Company 5,095.08
01/09/2017 3123 Veolia Water North America, Inc. 4,961.63
01/09/2017 3121 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & ... 1,375.00
01/09/2017 3120 Federal Express 23.84

Jan 9, 17 1,304,329.30

Novato Sanitary District
Capital Projects Check Register

January 9, 2017

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 12 of 96)



 Novato Sanitary District

 Payroll and Payroll Related Check Register 
December - 2016 

Date Description Amount

12/31/2016 December Payroll 111,459.64

12/21/2016 December - Retirees Health Benefits 11,817.17

12/21/2016 CALPERS Retirement 9,794.20

12/31/2016 United States Treasury 23,827.00

12/21/2016 CalPers Supplemental Income Plan 2,500.00

12/31/2016 EDD 7,187.13

12/21/2016 Lincoln Financial Group 457 8,259.90

12/21/2016 Lincoln Financial Group 457 Roth 750.00

12/21/2016 Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,623.55

12/21/2016 Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,604.43

12/21/2016 CALPERS Retirement 13,151.07

12/21/2016 CalPERS Health 30,247.05

12/21/2016 Local Union 315 440.00

12/21/2016 Operating Engineers Trust 690.30

12/21/2016 Dearborne 2,281.95

229,633.39

Item 5.b.

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 13 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



 1:13 PM
 01/05/17

 Novato Sanitary District

 Deposit Detail
 December 2016

Date Name Account Amount

11113 · Westamerica - Operations

12/07/2016 Marin H2O Inc 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Novato Chevrolet 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 60.00

CWEA 66080 · Memberships 88.00

Ben Franklin Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Laughlin, Robert 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Foged, Larry - 11200 - Accounts Receivable 140.00

TOTAL 408.00

12/13/2016 City of Novato - Used Oil/Beverage 11200 - Accounts Receivable 9,375.15

Joyce, Kevin 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 60.00

BPS Partners II LLC 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 60.00

BPS Partners II LLC 51020 · Connection Charges 11,403.00

Devcon Const 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 60.00

TOTAL 20,958.15

12/16/2016 County of Marin 41010 · Sewer Service Charges 4,904,459.86

County of Marin 51010 · Sewer Service Charges 4,012,739.88

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 1,050,504.36

County of Marin 21045 · Novato Heights Debt Service 94,766.43

County of Marin 21045 · Novato Heights Debt Service -292.50

County of Marin 66202 · County Fees - Property Taxes -15,391.41

County of Marin 66203 · County Fees - Sewer Service Chg -21,600.00

TOTAL 10,025,186.62

12/16/2016 Roto Rooter 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Neptune Society Inc. 41030 · Plan Check & Inspection Fee 25.00

Neptune Society Inc. 51020 · Connection Charges 2,715.00

Savidge Construction 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 25.00

Savidge Construction 51020 · Connection Charges 4,887.00
TOTAL 7,692.00

12/20/2016 Miscellaneous 66090 · Office Expense 25.00

Levine, Laura 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Sisco, Justin 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 15.00

North Marin Water District- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 13,201.96

TOTAL 13,281.96

12/27/2016 County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 1,198.84

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 594.80

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 1,516.60

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 135.54

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 67,370.90

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 838.21

Zaragoza Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 15.00

Duptech Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Au Energy LLC 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,113.20

TOTAL 72,823.09

Total December Deposits 10,140,349.82

Item 5.c.

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 14 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

TITLE: Consent Calendar:  Submittal of 
Annual Financial Transactions Report 
(FTR) to the State Controller’s Office 
(SCO). 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2017. 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5.d. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report - submittal of Financial Transactions Report (FTR) to the 
State Controller’s Office (SCO). 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 

Staff recently filed the District’s Fiscal Year FY15-16 FTR with the SCO. Briefly, the FTR documents 
the District’s financial position at year end. It includes general information and financial information 
including the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity, report 
on long term debt, and footnotes if there were any significant changes from the District’s prior year’s 
FTR. 

Currently, the District files its FTR electronically. In prior years, an agency such as the District was 
required to file its FTR within 110 days after the end of its fiscal year per Government Code. However, 
Assembly Bill AB 341 (Achadjian) recently streamlined the SCO reporting process for special districts, 
cities, and counties. The new law extended the deadline for FTR submittal to the SCO from 110 days 
after the close of the fiscal year, to seven months. Staff timely filed the FTR to the SCO’s website, and 
received confirmation of acceptance. More information and previous FTR filings can be found on the 
SCO’s website: https://bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/finance-explorer/view-by-special-district. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Districts Financial Transactions Report Cover Page and Proof of Submittal for FY15-16.

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: 
This item addresses Goal 1 (Operational Excellence), Goal 3 (Alignment and Communications), and 
Goal 4 (Well Planned Finances with a Long Range Outlook) of the latest Strategic Plan Update. 

DEPT. MGR.: lc, ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 15 of 96)

https://bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/finance-explorer/view-by-special-district


Item 5.d.
Attachment 1

(Pages 16 to 17)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 16 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 17 of 96)



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

TITLE: Consent Calendar:  Temporary 
Discharge Permit – Ghilotti 
Construction, for NMWD Recycled 
Water Pipeline Expansion 

MEETING DATE:  January 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5.f. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve application from Ghilotti Construction, and authorize 
the General Manager-Chief Engineer to issue a one-time, temporary, Class I non-domestic 
discharge permit for discharge of excavation and pressure test water from construction of 
the North Marin Water District (NMWD) recycled water pipeline expansion. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:  
The District received a permit application from Ghilotti Construction, on December 2, 2016, for a 
temporary, Class I non-domestic discharge permit.  The application is to discharge excavation 
water from pipeline placement around areas of known groundwater contamination, and water 
used to pressure test and flush the new pipeline once it is completed, if necessary 
The contamination of the groundwater renders it unacceptable for discharge to District sewers 
without pretreatment.  The permit application specifies that all wastewater will pass through 
sediment filters and activated carbon prior to discharge.  The excavation water will be stored in 
Baker tanks prior to pretreatment and discharge. 
Although the contamination will be removed by the activated carbon, the San Francisco Bay 
Regional Water Quality Board (SFRWQCB) has previously indicated that, as a general practice, 
treated wastewater from any clean-up site should be discharged to a sanitary sewer, and not a 
storm drain.  The SFRWQCB has also requested that POTWs accept discharge of such 
wastewater, subject to permit conditions acceptable to the POTW.  
Uncontaminated excavation and test water will be discharged to the City of Novato’s stormwater 
system (through a separate approval process by the City of Novato). 
Therefore, staff recommends that the Board approve the subject application and authorize the 
Manager-Engineer to issue a one time, temporary Class I non-domestic discharge permit to 
Ghilotti Construction, to include the following conditions: 

1. The groundwater shall be pretreated with activated carbon prior to discharge to the
sanitary sewer,

2. The approximate total discharge of groundwater will be 50,000 gallons.
3. The approximate total discharge of test/flush water is 100,000 gallons, if not approved by

the City of Novato to discharge to the stormwater system.
4. The discharger shall not exceed a maximum discharge rate of 50 gpm for either discharge.

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: This item addresses Goal 1 (Operational Excellence) of the 
latest Strategic Plan Update. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  Permit, monitoring, and discharge fees will offset the cost of preparing 
the permit, site visit(s) while discharging, and treatment/disposal of the discharge. 

DEPT. MGR.: eb GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 18 of 96)



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA  

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
TITLE:  Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS) Post-Employment 
Benefits Trust. 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive update on implementation of the Post-Employment Benefits 
Trust for District liabilities related to Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 
(“GASB 45”) for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions, and GASB 68 for Net Pension 
Liability (NPL); review Investment Guideline Documents (IGDs or Documents) prepared by Highmark 
Capital; and authorize the Board President to execute the Documents on its behalf. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:  
At its November 14, 2016 meeting, the District Board approved implementing a combined Post-
Employment Benefits Trust with Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS), Newport Beach, CA, to 
address the District’s GASB 45 and 68 liabilities. At its December 12, 2016 meeting, the Board 
received an update on implementation of the trust program. A further update is provided below. 
PARS provided the District with the necessary agreements and legal documents to implement the 
District’s trust program. As authorized by the Board at the November 14, 2016 meeting, and upon 
legal review by District Counsel, the General Manager (as Plan administrator) has executed all 
required legal and administrative plan documents on the District’s behalf. It is anticipated that the 
District’s trust program/fund will be in place in January 2017.  
On December 15, 2016, the General Manager and Finance Officer also participated in a conference 
call with the PARS investment manager Andrew Brown of Highmark Capital to review further elements 
of program implementation. To review, PARS is the trust administrator and consultant, and provides 
recordkeeping/sub-trust accounting, trustee and actuarial coordination. PARS also monitors 
contributions and plan compliance, and provides ongoing client liaison. U.S. Bank serves as the plan 
trustee for the District; safeguards plan assets; provides oversight protection, and serves as the plan’s 
fiduciary and custodian of assets. High Mark Capital Management is the investment manager of the 
Trust, and is an investment sub-advisor to U.S. Bank. 
Consistent with the Board’s direction of a “conservative” investment philosophy and a desired 3%-5% 
long term investment goal for the combined PARS trust fund, Mr. Brown has prepared the attached 
Investment Guidelines Document (IGD or Documents) for each sub-account of the District’s PARS 
trust program, i.e. for the GASB 45 and GASB 68 liabilities respectively. It is recommended that as the 
Plan Sponsor, the Board review these Documents and authorize the Board President to execute them 
on its behalf. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. “Investment Guidelines Document, Novato Sanitary District, Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability Plan, December 2016”, and  
2. “Investment Guidelines Document, Novato Sanitary District, Net Pension Liability (NPL) Plan,
December 2016”. 

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: This item addresses Goal 4 (Well Planned Finances with a Long 
Range Outlook) of the latest Strategic Plan Update. It also addressess other goals of the Strategic 
Plan including Goal 1 (Operational Excellence), and Goal 3 (Alignment and Communications). 
DEPT. MGR.: lc, ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 19 of 96)



Investment Guidelines Document 

Novato Sanitary District 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Liability Plan 

December 2016 

Item 6.a. 
Attachment 1 

(Pages 20 to 26)

NSD Agenda Packet
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 20 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



Investment Guidelines Document 

Scope and Purpose 

The purpose of this Investment Guidelines Document is to: 

• Facilitate the process of ongoing communication between the Plan Sponsor and its plan
fiduciaries;

• Confirm the Plan’s investment goals and objectives and management policies applicable
to the investment portfolio identified below and obtained from the Plan Sponsor;

• Provide a framework to construct a well-diversified asset mix that can potentially be
expected to meet the account’s short- and long-term needs that is consistent with the
account’s investment objectives, liquidity considerations and risk tolerance;

• Identify any unique considerations that may restrict or limit the investment discretion of its
designated investment managers;

• Help maintain a long-term perspective when market volatility is caused by short-term
market movements.

Key Plan Sponsor Account Information as of December 2016 

Plan Sponsor:  Novato Sanitary District (or District) 

Governance: The Board of Directors for the Novato Sanitary District 

Plan Name (“Plan”): Novato Sanitary District Other Post-Employment Benefits 

(OPEB) Liability Plan 

Trustee: US Bank 

Contact: Susan Hughes, 949-224-7209 

susan.hughes@usbank.com 

Type of Account: GASB 45/Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust 

Investment Manager: US Bank, as discretionary trustee, has delegated investment 

management responsibilities to HighMark Capital Management, 

Inc. (“Investment Manager”), an SEC-registered investment 

adviser  

Contact: Andrew Brown, CFA, 415-705-7605 

Andrew.brown@highmarkcapital.com 

NSD Agenda Packet
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 21 of 96)



Investment Authority:  Except as otherwise noted, the Trustee, US Bank, has delegated 
investment authority to HighMark Capital Management, an SEC-registered investment adviser. 
Investment Manager has full investment discretion over the managed assets in the account. 
Investment Manager is authorized to purchase, sell, exchange, invest, reinvest and manage the 
designated assets held in the account, all in accordance with account’s investment objectives, 
without prior approval or subsequent approval of any other party(ies). 
 
 
Investment Objectives and Constraints 
The goal of the Plan’s investment program is to generate adequate long-term returns that, when 
combined with contributions, will result in sufficient assets to pay the present and future 
obligations of the Plan. The following objectives are intended to assist in achieving this goal: 

• The Plan should earn, on a long-term average basis, a rate of return equal to or in excess 
of the target rate of return of 4.0%. 

• The Plan should seek to earn a return in excess of its policy benchmark over the long-
term. 

• The Plan’s assets will be managed on a total return basis which takes into consideration 
both investment income and capital appreciation. While the Plan Sponsor recognizes the 
importance of preservation of capital, it also adheres to the principle that varying degrees 
of investment risk are generally rewarded with compensating returns. To achieve these 
objectives, the Plan Sponsor allocates its assets (asset allocation) with a strategic, long-
term perspective of the capital markets. 

 
Investment Time Horizon: Long-term 

Anticipated Cash Flows: Distributions are expected to be modest in the early years of the 
Plan. 

Target Rate of Return:  4.00% 

Investment Objective: The primary objective is to maximize total Plan return, subject to 
the risk and quality constraints set forth herein. The investment 
objective the Plan Sponsor has selected is the Conservative 
Objective, which seeks to provide a consistent level of inflation-
protected income over the long-term.  The major portion of the 
assets will be fixed income related.  Equity securities are utilized 
to provide inflation protection. 

 
Risk Tolerance: Conservative 

The account’s risk tolerance has been rated Conservative, which 
demonstrates that the account can accept low price fluctuations 
to pursue its investment objectives. 

 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 22 of 96)



Strategic Asset Allocation: The asset allocation ranges for this objective are listed below: 
 

Strategic Asset Allocation Ranges 
Cash Fixed Income Equity 
0-20% 60%-95% 5%-20% 

Policy: 5% Policy: 80% Policy: 15% 
 
Market conditions may cause the account’s asset allocation to vary from the stated range from 
time to time. The Investment Manager will rebalance the portfolio no less than quarterly and/or 
when the actual weighting differs substantially from the strategic range, if appropriate and 
consistent with your objectives. 
 
Security Guidelines: 
 
Equities 
With the exception of limitations and constraints described above, Investment Manager may 
allocate assets of the equity portion of the account among various market capitalizations (large, 
mid, small) and investment styles (value, growth). Further, Investment Manager may allocate 
assets among domestic, international developed and emerging market equity securities. 
 

Total Equities 5%-20% 
Equity Style Range 

Domestic Large Cap Equity 5%-20% 
Domestic Mid Cap Equity 0%-5% 
Domestic Small Cap Equity 0%-7% 
International Equity (incl. Emerging Markets) 0%-7% 
Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) 0%-5% 

 
Fixed Income 
In the fixed income portion of the account, Investment Manager may allocate assets among 
various sectors and industries, as well as varying maturities and credit quality that are consistent 
with the overall goals and objectives of the portfolio. 
 
 

Total Fixed Income 60%-95% 
Fixed Income Style Range 

Long-term bonds (maturities >7 years) 0%40% 
Intermediate-term bonds (maturities 3-7 years) 30%-95% 
Short-Term bonds (maturities <3 years) 0%-30% 
High Yield bonds 0%-6% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 23 of 96)



Total Portfolio Blended Benchmark 
 7.50% S&P500 Index 
 1.50% Russell Mid Cap Index 
 2.50% Russell 2000 Index 
 1.00% MSCI Emerging Market Index 
 2.00% MSCI-EAFE Index 
 0.50% Wilshire REIT Index 
 52.25% Barclays Capital Aggregate Index 
 25.75% ML 1-3 Year US Corp/Gov’t Index 
 2.00% US High Yield Master II Index 
 5.00%  Citi 1Mth T-Bill 
 
Asset Class/Style Benchmarks 
Over a market cycle, the long-term objective for each investment strategy is to add value to a 
market benchmark. The following are the benchmarks used to monitor each investment strategy: 
Large Cap Equity  S&P 500 Index 
 Growth   S&P 500 Growth Index 
 Value   S&P 500 Value Index 
Mid Cap Equity   Russell Mid Cap Index 
 Growth   Russell Mid Cap Growth Index 
 Value   Russell Mid Cap Value Index 
Small Cap Equity  Russell 2000 Index 
 Growth   Russell 2000 Growth Index 
 Value   Russell 2000 Value Index 
REITs    Wilshire REIT Index 
International Equity  MSCI EAFE Index 
Investment Grade Bonds Barclays Capital Aggregate Index 
High Yield   US High Yield Master Index 
 
Security Selection 
Investment Manager may utilize a full range of investment vehicles when constructing the 
investment portfolio, including but not limited to individual securities, mutual funds, and exchange-
traded funds. In addition, to the extent permissible, Investment Manager is authorized to invest in 
shares of mutual funds in which the Investment Manager serves as advisor or sub-adviser. 
 
Investment Limitations: 
The following investment transactions are prohibited: 
• Direct investments in precious metals (precious metals mutual funds and exchange-traded 

funds are permissible). 
• Venture Capital 
• Short sales* 
• Purchases of Letter Stock, Private Placements, or direct payments 
• Leveraged Transactions* 
• Commodities Transactions Puts, calls, straddles, or other option strategies*  
• Purchases of real estate, with the exception of REITs 
• Derivatives, with exception of ETFs* 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 24 of 96)



*Permissible in diversified mutual funds and exchange-traded funds 
 
 
Duties and Responsibilities 
Responsibilities of Plan Sponsor 
The Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District is responsible for: 

 Confirming the accuracy of this Investment Guidelines Document, in writing. 
 Advising Trustee and Investment Manager of any change in the plan/account’s financial 

situation, funding status, or cash flows, which could possibly necessitate a change to the 
account’s overall risk tolerance, time horizon or liquidity requirements; and thus would 
dictate a change to the overall investment objective and goals for the account.   

 Monitoring and supervising all service vendors and investment options, including 
investment managers. 

 Avoiding prohibited transactions and conflicts of interest.  
 
Responsibilities of Trustee 
The plan Trustee is responsible for: 

 Valuing the holdings. 
 Collecting all income and dividends owed to the Plan. 
 Settling all transactions (buy-sell orders). 

 
Responsibilities of Investment Manager 
The Investment Manager is responsible for: 

 Assisting the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District with the development and 
maintenance of this Investment Policy Guideline document annually. 

 Meeting with the District Board of Directors at least annually to review portfolio structure, 
holdings, and performance. 

 Providing quarterly investment reports to the finance committee. 
 Designing, recommending and implementing an appropriate asset allocation consistent 

with the investment objectives, time horizon, risk profile, guidelines and constraints 
outlined in this statement. 

 Researching and monitoring investment advisers and investment vehicles. 
 Purchasing, selling, and reinvesting in securities held in the account. 
 Monitoring the performance of all selected assets. 
 Voting proxies, if applicable. 
 Recommending changes to any of the above. 
 Periodically reviewing the suitability of the investments, being available to meet with the 

committee at least once each year, and being available at such other times within reason 
at your request. 

 Informing the committee if changes occur in personnel that are responsible for portfolio 
management or research. 

 
 
 
 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 25 of 96)



 
Acknowledgement and Acceptance 
 
I/We being the Plan Sponsor with responsibility for the account(s) held on behalf of the Plan 
Sponsor specified below, designate Investment Manager as having the investment discretion and 
management responsibility indicated in relation to all assets of the Plan or specified Account. If 
such designation is set forth in the Plan/trust, I/We hereby confirm such designation as 
Investment Manager. 
 
I have read the Investment Guidelines Document, and confirm the accuracy of it, including the 
terms and conditions under which the assets in this account are to be held, managed, and 
disposed of by Investment Manager. This Investment Guidelines Document supersedes all 
previous versions of an Investment Guidelines Document or investment objective instructions that 
may have been executed for this account. 
 
 
__________________________________________________ Date:________________  
Plan Sponsor:  A. Gerald Peters, President, Board of Directors,  
Novato Sanitary District 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ Date:________________  
Investment Manager: Andrew Brown, CFA,  
Senior Portfolio Manager, (415) 705-7605 
 
 
 
 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 26 of 96)



Investment Guidelines Document 

Novato Sanitary District 

Net Pension Liability (NPL) Plan 

December 2016 

NSD Agenda Packet
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 27 of 96)

Item 6.a.
Attachment 2

(Pages 27 to 33)

julieh
Rectangle



Investment Guidelines Document 
 
 
Scope and Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Investment Guidelines Document is to: 

• Facilitate the process of ongoing communication between the Plan Sponsor and its plan 
fiduciaries; 

• Confirm the Plan’s investment goals and objectives and management policies applicable 
to the investment portfolio identified below and obtained from the Plan Sponsor; 

• Provide a framework to construct a well-diversified asset mix that can potentially be 
expected to meet the account’s investment needs that is consistent with the account’s 
investment objectives, liquidity considerations and risk tolerance; 

• Identify any unique considerations that may restrict or limit the investment discretion of its 
designated investment managers; 

• Help maintain a long-term perspective when market volatility is caused by short-term 
market movements. 

 

Key Plan Sponsor Account Information as of December 2016 

Plan Sponsor:   Novato Sanitary District (District) 

Governance: The Board of Directors for the Novato Sanitary District 

Plan Name (“Plan”): Novato Sanitary District Net Pension Liability (NPL) Plan 

 
Trustee:   US Bank 

Contact: Sue Hughes, 949-224-7209 

Susan.Hughes@usbank.com 

Type of Account:  Pension Plan 

Investment Manager: US Bank, as discretionary trustee, has delegated investment 

management responsibilities to HighMark Capital Management, 

Inc. (“Investment Manager”), an SEC-registered investment 

adviser  

Contact: Andrew Brown, CFA, 415-705-7605 

Andrew.brown@highmarkcapital.com 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 28 of 96)

mailto:Susan.Hughes@usbank.com


Investment Authority:  Except as otherwise noted, the Trustee, US Bank, has delegated 
investment authority to HighMark Capital Management, an SEC-registered investment adviser. 
Investment Manager has full investment discretion over the managed assets in the account. 
Investment Manager is authorized to purchase, sell, exchange, invest, reinvest and manage the 
designated assets held in the account, all in accordance with account’s investment objectives, 
without prior approval or subsequent approval of any other party(ies). 
 
 
Investment Objectives and Constraints 
The goal of the Plan’s investment program is to provide a reasonable level of growth which, will 
result in sufficient assets to pay the present and future obligations of the Plan. The following 
objectives are intended to assist in achieving this goal: 

• The Plan should seek to earn a return in excess of its policy benchmark over the life of 
the Plan.   

• The Plan’s assets will be managed on a total return basis which takes into consideration 
both investment income and capital appreciation. While the Plan Sponsor recognizes the 
importance of preservation of capital, it also adheres to the principle that varying degrees 
of investment risk are generally rewarded with compensating returns. To achieve these 
objectives, the Plan Sponsor allocates its assets (asset allocation) with a strategic 
perspective of the capital markets. 

 
Investment Time Horizon: Medium to long-term 

Anticipated Cash Flows: Assets in the Plan will seek to mitigate the impact of future rate 
increases from Calpers.  Typically increases in rates come with a 
one-year advance warning, however this Plan may transfer 
assets to Calpers at any time. 

Investment Objective: The primary objective is to maximize total Plan return, subject to 
the risk and quality constraints set forth herein. The investment 
objective the Plan Sponsor has selected is the Conservative 
Objective, which seeks to provide a consistent level of inflation-
protected income over the long-term.  The major portion of the 
assets will be fixed income related.  Equity securities are utilized 
to provide inflation protection. The assets in this Trust are also 
available to mitigate the potential negative impact of future rate 
hikes from Calpers.  

 
Risk Tolerance: Conservative 

The account’s risk tolerance has been rated Conservative, which 
demonstrates that the account can accept low price fluctuations 
to pursue its investment objectives. 

 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 29 of 96)



Strategic Asset Allocation: The asset allocation ranges for this objective are listed below: 
 

Strategic Asset Allocation Ranges 
Cash Fixed Income Equity 
0-20% 60%-95% 5%-20% 

Policy: 5% Policy: 80% Policy: 15% 
 
Market conditions may cause the account’s asset allocation to vary from the stated range from 
time to time. The Investment Manager will rebalance the portfolio no less than quarterly and/or 
when the actual weighting differs substantially from the strategic range, if appropriate and 
consistent with your objectives. 
 
Security Guidelines: 
 
Equities 
With the exception of limitations and constraints described above, Investment Manager may 
allocate assets of the equity portion of the account among various market capitalizations (large, 
mid, small) and investment styles (value, growth). Further, Investment Manager may allocate 
assets among domestic, international developed and emerging market equity securities. 
 

Total Equities 5%-20% 
Equity Style Range 

Domestic Large Cap Equity 5%-20% 
Domestic Mid Cap Equity 0%-5% 
Domestic Small Cap Equity 0%-7% 
International Equity (incl. Emerging Markets) 0%-7% 
Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) 0%-5% 

 
Fixed Income 
In the fixed income portion of the account, Investment Manager may allocate assets among 
various sectors and industries, as well as varying maturities and credit quality that are consistent 
with the overall goals and objectives of the portfolio. 
 
 

Total Fixed Income 60%-95% 
Fixed Income Style Range 

Long-term bonds (maturities >7 years) 0%40% 
Intermediate-term bonds (maturities 3-7 years) 30%-95% 
Short-Term bonds (maturities <3 years) 0%-30% 
High Yield bonds 0%-6% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 30 of 96)



Performance Benchmarks:  
The performance of the total Plan shall be measured over a three and five-year periods. These 
periods are considered sufficient to accommodate the market cycles experienced with 
investments. The performance shall be compared to the return of the total portfolio blended 
benchmark shown below. 
 
Total Portfolio Blended Benchmark 
 7.50% S&P500 Index 
 1.50% Russell Mid Cap Index 
 2.50% Russell 2000 Index 
 1.00% MSCI Emerging Market Index 
 2.00% MSCI-EAFE Index 
 0.50% Wilshire REIT Index 
 52.25% Barclays Capital Aggregate Index 
 25.75% ML 1-3 Year US Corp/Gov’t Index 
 2.00% US High Yield Master II Index 
 5.00%  Citi 1Mth T-Bill 
 
Asset Class/Style Benchmarks 
Over a market cycle, the long-term objective for each investment strategy is to add value to a 
market benchmark. The following are the benchmarks used to monitor each investment strategy: 
Large Cap Equity  S&P 500 Index 
 Growth   S&P 500 Growth Index 
 Value   S&P 500 Value Index 
Mid Cap Equity   Russell Mid Cap Index 
 Growth   Russell Mid Cap Growth Index 
 Value   Russell Mid Cap Value Index 
Small Cap Equity  Russell 2000 Index 
 Growth   Russell 2000 Growth Index 
 Value   Russell 2000 Value Index 
REITs    Wilshire REIT Index 
International Equity  MSCI EAFE Index 
Investment Grade Bonds Barclays Capital Aggregate Index 
High Yield   US High Yield Master Index 
 
 
Security Selection 
Investment Manager may utilize a full range of investment vehicles when constructing the 
investment portfolio, including but not limited to individual securities, mutual funds, and exchange-
traded funds. In addition, to the extent permissible, Investment Manager is authorized to invest in 
shares of mutual funds in which the Investment Manager serves as advisor or sub-adviser. 
 
Investment Limitations: 
The following investment transactions are prohibited: 
• Direct investments in precious metals (precious metals mutual funds and exchange-traded 

funds are permissible). 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 31 of 96)



• Venture Capital 
• Short sales* 
• Purchases of Letter Stock, Private Placements, or direct payments 
• Leveraged Transactions* 
• Commodities Transactions Puts, calls, straddles, or other option strategies*  
• Purchases of real estate, with the exception of REITs 
• High yield rated bonds 
• Derivatives, with exception of ETFs* 
 
*Permissible in diversified mutual funds and exchange-traded funds 
 
Duties and Responsibilities 
Responsibilities of Plan Sponsor 
The Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District is responsible for: 

 Confirming the accuracy of this Investment Guidelines Document, in writing. 
 Advising Trustee and Investment Manager of any change in the plan/account’s financial 

situation, funding status, or cash flows, which could possibly necessitate a change to the 
account’s overall risk tolerance, time horizon or liquidity requirements; and thus would 
dictate a change to the overall investment objective and goals for the account.   

 Monitoring and supervising all service vendors and investment options, including 
investment managers. 

 Avoiding prohibited transactions and conflicts of interest.  
 
Responsibilities of Trustee 
The plan Trustee is responsible for: 

 Valuing the holdings. 
 Collecting all income and dividends owed to the Plan. 
 Settling all transactions (buy-sell orders). 

 
Responsibilities of Investment Manager 
The Investment Manager is responsible for: 

 Assisting the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District with the development and 
maintenance of this Investment Policy Guideline document annually. 

 Meeting with the District Board of Directors at least annually to review portfolio structure, 
holdings, and performance. 

 Providing quarterly investment reports to the finance committee. 
 Designing, recommending and implementing an appropriate asset allocation consistent 

with the investment objectives, time horizon, risk profile, guidelines and constraints 
outlined in this statement. 

 Researching and monitoring investment advisers and investment vehicles. 
 Purchasing, selling, and reinvesting in securities held in the account. 
 Monitoring the performance of all selected assets. 
 Voting proxies, if applicable. 
 Recommending changes to any of the above. 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 32 of 96)



 Periodically reviewing the suitability of the investments, being available to meet with the 
committee at least once each year, and being available at such other times within reason 
at your request. 

 Informing the committee if changes occur in personnel that are responsible for portfolio 
management or research. 

 
 
 
Acknowledgement and Acceptance 
 
I/We being the Plan Sponsor with responsibility for the account(s) held on behalf of the Plan 
Sponsor specified below, designate Investment Manager as having the investment discretion and 
management responsibility indicated in relation to all assets of the Plan or specified Account. If 
such designation is set forth in the Plan/trust, I/We hereby confirm such designation as 
Investment Manager. 
 
I have read the Investment Guidelines Document, and confirm the accuracy of it, including the 
terms and conditions under which the assets in this account are to be held, managed, and 
disposed of by Investment Manager. This Investment Guidelines Document supersedes all 
previous versions of an Investment Guidelines Document or investment objective instructions that 
may have been executed for this account. 
 
 
__________________________________________________ Date:________________  
Plan Sponsor:  A. Gerald Peters, President, Board of Directors, 
Novato Sanitary District 
 
 
__________________________________________________ Date:________________  
Investment Manager: Andrew Brown, CFA,  
Senior Portfolio Manager, (415) 705-7605 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 33 of 96)



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Board of Directors: Review 
Paragraph 5010.1, Policy No. 5010: 
Board Meetings. 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2017 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  6.b. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review Board meeting start time, and provide direction, if any. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The Board of Directors regular meeting date and time was set by Resolution No. 95 adopted 
December 29, 1952. The regular meeting date and time has been changed by resolutions; 
most recently the meeting time was changed from 6:30 pm to 6:00 pm by Resolution No. 
3051, adopted October 8, 2012, and memorialized in paragraph 5010.1 of District Board 
Policy No. 5010. 

The Board periodically reviews its meeting time with consideration given to changing it or 
leaving it unchanged. Since the Board last reviewed the meeting start time over four years 
ago, it may be appropriate to review it at this time. It is suggested that the Board review this 
item and provide direction to staff. If the Board wishes to change the meeting start time, staff 
will bring forward the appropriate enabling Resolution, any updates to Policy No. 5010, and 
information on any cost or budget impacts, for the Board’s consideration at a future Board 
meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Policy No. 5010 – Board Meetings. 
2. Resolution No. 3051, adopted October 8, 2012.  

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: This item addresses Goal 3 (Alignment and 
Communications) and Goal 5 (Effective Governance and Administration) of the latest 
Strategic Plan Update. 
  DEPT. MGR.: ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 34 of 96)



Novato Sanitary District 
POLICY HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Board Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER: 5010 

5010.1 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the second and fourth Mondays of each 
calendar month at 6:00 p.m. (Res. #3051, 10/08/2012) in the Conference Room of Novato Sanitary District at 
500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA.   

5010.2 Special meetings (non-emergency) of the Board of Directors may be called by the Board President. 

5010.2.1 All Directors, the Manager-Engineer, the Deputy Manager-Engineer, District Counsel and 
other staff members as appropriate shall be notified of the special Board meeting and the purpose or 
purposes for which it is called.  Said notification shall be in writing, delivered to them at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

5010.2.2 Newspapers of general circulation in the District, radio stations and television stations, 
organizations, and property owners who have requested notice of special meetings in accordance with 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code §54950 through §54963) shall receive written 
notice by any means that ensures receipt at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

5010.2.3 There is no express agenda requirement for special meetings, but the notice of the meeting 
effectively serves as the agenda and limits the business that may be conducted. 

5010.3 Special Meetings (emergency).  In the event of an emergency situation involving matters upon which 
prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board of Directors 
may hold an emergency special meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice required in 5010.2.1, above.  
An emergency situation means a crippling disaster which severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as 
determined by the Manager-Engineer, Board President or President Pro Tem in the President's absence. 

5010.3.1 Newspapers of general circulation in the District, radio stations and television stations 
which have requested notice of special meetings in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code §54950 through §54963) shall be notified by at least one hour prior to the 
emergency special meeting, as long as such notification would not endanger the public health or 
safety, as determined by a majority of the Board.  In the event that telephone services are not 
functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived, but the Manager-Engineer, or his/her 
designee, shall notify such newspapers, radio stations, or television stations of the fact of the holding of 

Item 6.b.
Attachment 1

(Pages 35 to 36)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 35 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



the emergency special meeting, and of any action taken by the Board, as soon after the meeting as 
possible. 

 
 5010.3.2 The Board may meet in closed session during an emergency special meeting only for the 

purposes of consulting with law enforcement or security officials, and only if agreed to by a two-thirds 
vote of the Board, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, by a unanimous vote of 
the Board members present.  All other rules governing special meetings shall be observed with the 
exception of the 24-hour notice.  The minutes of the emergency special meeting, a list of persons the 
Manager-Engineer or designee notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the roll call vote(s), and any 
actions taken at such meeting shall be posted for a minimum of ten days in the District office as soon 
after the meeting as possible.   

 
5010.4 Adjourned Meetings.  A majority vote by the Board of Directors may adjourn any Board meeting at any 
place in the agenda to any time and place specified in the order of adjournment, except that if no Directors are 
present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the Manager-Engineer may declare the meeting adjourned 
to a stated time and place, and he/she shall cause a written notice of adjournment to be given to those specified 
in 5010.2.2 above.  If a meeting is adjourned to a date within five calendar days and no new items are to be 
introduced, no new agenda will be posted.  A copy of the order of adjournment will be posted within 24 hours 
after the adjournment, at or near the door of the place where the meeting was held.  
 
5010.6 Election of Officers.  At its second meeting in June of each year, the Board of Directors shall elect a 
President and President Pro Tem to serve during the coming fiscal year, and will appoint the Manager-Engineer 
as the Board's Secretary/Treasurer and the Administrative Services Manager as the District’s 
Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tem. 
 
5010.7 The Chairperson of the meetings described herein shall determine the order in which agenda items 
shall be considered for discussion and/or action by the Board. 
 
5010.8 The Chairperson and the Manager-Engineer shall ensure that appropriate information is available for 
the audience at meetings of the Board of Directors, and that physical facilities for said meetings are functional 
and appropriate. 
 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 36 of 96)



RESOLUTION NO. 3051

A RESOLUTION CHANGING TIME

OF REGULAR DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, 
California that

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District, in Resolution No. 95, 
adopted December 29, 1952, provided for the regular date of meetings of said District; 

WHEREAS, said regular meeting date and time has been changed by Resolutions
from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District desires to further
change the regular meeting time of said District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, as follows: 
Sec. 1 of said Resolution No. 95, adopted December 29, 1952, shall be, and it is

hereby, amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 1. REGULAR MEETINGS: The regular meetings of the Novato Sanitary

District, Marin County, California, shall hereafter be held on the second Monday and the
fourth Monday of each and every calendar month, at six (6: 00) o' clock P. M." 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the Board
of Directors of Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a regular meeting held
on the 8th day of October, 2012, by the following vote of the members thereof: 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members Di Giorgio, Long, Mariani, Peters

NOES, Members: Welsh

ABSENT, Members: 

President, Bo d of Directors

Novato Sanitary District
ATTEST: 

ZMLddMV-A= 
S cretary

sAboard resolutions \mtg time resolution. doc

Item 6.b.
Attachment 2

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 37 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



CALL FOR NOMINATIONS 

December 13, 2016 

TO: Presiding Officers 
Independent Special Districts in Marin County 

FROM: Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Call for Nominations | 
Four-Year Term as Regular Special District Member  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 states the 
composition of Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) shall include seven 
regular members divided between county (two), city (two), special district (two), and 
public (one) representation.  Each represented category has one alternate.  Appointments 
for the county, city, and special district seats are made by the board of supervisors, city 
selection committee, and the special district selection committee, respectively.  LAFCOs 
– importantly and through their Executive Officers – are also authorized to conduct an
election for special district members should they independently determine a meeting of
the special district selection committee is infeasible.

A. Call for Nominations

Marin LAFCO respectfully calls for nominations among all 30 independent special 
districts in Marin County to serve as a regular voting member on the Commission.  The 
term of office is four years and commences on May 1, 2017.   Additional information 
pertinent to the nomination process follows.  

Eligibility Criteria  
Any elected or appointed member of an independent special district in Marin County 
may be nominated to serve as a special district representative on Marin LAFCO.  

Authorized Nominations 
Only the presiding officer or his or her alternate as designated by the governing board 
are authorized to nominate a special district member to serve on Marin LAFCO.   

Form of Nominations 
Nominations should be submitted by letter or email identifying the nominee and 
their special district along with qualification statements and/or related background 
materials.  Emails should be directed to ksimonds@marinlafco.org. 

Item 6.c.
(Pages 38 to 43)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 38 of 96)

mailto:ksimonds@marinlafco.org
julieh
Rectangle



Nomination Allowances/Limitations 
Only one nomination can be made by the presiding officer or their alternate per each 
independent special district.   Nominations can be drawn from within the governing 
board or from another independent special district in Marin County.    

Nomination Deadline  
All nominations must be submitted to Marin LAFCO by email or standard mail no 
later than January 31, 2017.  Nominations received after this date will be returned. 

B. Post Nomination Steps

Following the close of the nomination period Marin LAFCO will issue rank-choice ballots 
to all 30 independent special districts by certified mail on February 7, 2017.   The ballots 
will identify all nominees and include any supporting materials provided to Marin 
LAFCO during the nomination process.    Presiding officers or their alternates shall 
return signed ballots to Marin LAFCO by email (scan) or standard mail no later than 
March 28, 2017.  Ballots received after this date will be returned.    

At least 16 signed ballots need to be received by the referenced date to achieve the 
necessary quorum.  Should a quorum be achieved Marin LAFCO staff will proceed to 
count the ballots on March 31, 2017 with the ability of any interested parties to observe. 
Any nominated candidate receiving over 50% of “1” choice votes will be elected.  If no 
one receives a majority, the candidate with the least “1” choice votes will be eliminated 
and their votes will be redistributed among the remaining candidates.   This process will 
continue until a candidate is elected.  Attached is a flowchart summarizing the process. 

C. More Information

All questions and related inquiries regarding the election process should be directed to 
Keene Simonds at 415-448-5877 or ksimonds@marinlafco.org.  

Attachments: 
1) Flowchart on Special District Election Process with Timelines
2) Listing of All Independent Districts in Marin County
3) Marin LAFCO Procedures on Special District Elections

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 39 of 96)

mailto:ksimonds@marinlafco.org


BallotingNominations Election Count
December 13, 2016 to 

January 31, 2017

Special District Election to Seat a Regular Member 
Regular Member | Four-Year Term | Commences on May 1, 2017

February 7, 2017 to 
March 28, 2017 March 31, 2017 

Marin LAFCO calls for nominations
among all 30 independent special
districts on December 13th.

Presiding officers or their designees are
authorized to submit nominations on
the behalf of their special districts.

Nominations shall include statements
and or related materials regarding
candidates’ qualifications.

Nominations must be submitted to
Marin LAFCO by email or standard mail
by January 31st.

Marin LAFCO issues rank-choice ballots
to all 30 independent special districts
by certified mail on February 7th.

It is strongly encouraged - though not
required - each special district assign a
ranking preference to each candidate
(i.e., “1”, “2”, “3” etc.) on their ballot.

Presiding officers or their designees are
authorized to submit signed ballots on
behalf of their special districts.

Signed ballots must be returned to
Marin LAFCO by email (scan) or
standard mail by March 28th.

At least 16 signed ballots must be
received by Marin LAFCO to achieve
the necessary quorum status.

Marin LAFCO staff will tally the ballots
on March 31st. Anyone from the
public is invited to observe the count.

Any nominated candidate receiving
over 50% of “1” choice votes will be
elected. If no one receives a majority,
the candidate with the least “1” choice
votes will be eliminated and their votes
will be redistributed among the
remaining candidates. This process will
continue until a candidate is elected.

Step One Step Two Step Three 

Attachment One

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 40 of 96)



Marin County 
Independent Special Districts 

(Alphabetical Order) 

1. Almonte Sanitary District
2. Alto Sanitary District
3. Bel Marin Key Community Services District
4. Bolinas Fire Protection District
5. Bolinas Public Utility District
6. Homestead Valley Sanitary District
7. Inverness Public Utility District
8. Kentfield Fire Protection District
9. Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
10. Marin City Community Services District
11. Marin County Resource Conservation District
12. Marin Healthcare District
13. Marin Municipal Water District
14. Marinwood Community Services District
15. Muir Beach Community Services District
16. North Marin Municipal Water District
17. Novato Fire Protection District
18. Novato Sanitary District
19. Richardson Bay Sanitary District
20. Ross Valley County Sanitary District 1
21. Sausalito-Marin City Sanitary District
22. Sleepy Hollow Fire Protection District
23. Southern Marin Fire Protection District
24. Stinson Beach Fire Protection District
25. Stinson Beach Water District
26. Strawberry Recreation District
27. Tamalpais Community Services District
28. Tiburon Fire Protection District
29. Tiburon County Sanitary District 5
30. Tomales Village Community Services District

Attachment Two

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 41 of 96)



B. Procedures for Selection of Special District Members

Government Code §56332(c)(1) provides for selection of regular and alternate special 
district members by a mail ballot process when the Executive Officer determines that a 
meeting of the Special District Selection Committee is not feasible. Meetings of the Marin 
County Special District Selection Committee have previously failed to reach a quorum, 
indicating the infeasibility of Selection Committee meetings. Accordingly, it is the policy 
of Marin LAFCO to conduct selection proceedings of regular and alternate special district 
members by a mail ballot process consistent with the procedures outlined below. 

1. The Executive Officer shall initiate the mail ballot selection process for special
district members 180 days prior to the pending expiration of the term of a special
district member or immediately upon notification the eligibility of a special district
member on Marin LAFCO will end prior to the expiration of his or her term.

2. The Executive Officer shall initiate the mail ballot process by distributing to each
independent special district a call for nominations, including a schedule of the
selection process and a copy of this policy. Nominations must be submitted in
writing by special district governing boards within 60 days of the date of the call
for nominations. The submittal of a nomination must include a statement of the
candidate's qualifications. With the prior concurrence of any special district, the
Executive Officer may transmit these materials to and receive nominations from
that special district by electronic mail.

3. Within five working days of the close of the nomination period, the Executive
Officer shall distribute by certified mail one ballot to each independent special
district. The distribution of ballots shall include a statement of qualifications for
each candidate on the ballot.

4. Ballots may be submitted by mail or facsimile or electronic mail within 60 days of
distribution of the ballots. A majority of independent special district must cast
ballots to select a special district member. Selection shall be made by majority of
votes cast and a majority of independent special districts in Marin County.

5. Ballots cast by each special district must bear the signature of the district's
presiding officer. If the presiding officer is unavailable, the district board may
authorize another member of the board to cast the district's vote. Ballots may be
returned to the Marin LAFCO office by mail or by facsimile or electronic mail.

6. All ballots and other records of each selection process shall be retained in the
Marin LAFCO office for at least four years and shall be immediately available for
public inspection.

Attachment Three 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 42 of 96)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. When more than two candidates are nominated, the ballot form shall provide for 
selection by majority of votes cast through an "instant runoff" as follows: 

 
a) Each district casting a vote shall rank the candidates in order of their 

preference. District boards would simply indicate a "1" next to their first choice, 
a "2" next to their second choice, a "3" next to their third choice etc. 

 
b) In counting the votes by the Executive Officer, all first choice votes are counted. 

If any candidate receives over 50 percent of the first choice votes, that candidate 
is selected as special district member. 

 
c) If no candidate receives a majority, then the candidate with the fewest "1" votes 

is eliminated. The ballots of the supporters of the eliminated candidate are then 
transferred to whichever of the remaining candidates they marked for their 
second choice. This process shall be continued until one candidate receives a 
majority and is selected as special district member. 

 
8.  Should a vacancy occur during a special district member's term of office, a new 

appointment shall be made for the unexpired term of the special district member or 
alternate member according to the process above. 

 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 43 of 96)



S:\Board Reports\2017\1 January\First Meeting\Word Docs\7.a. Summary - WW Ops Report, December 2016.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  Wastewater Operations Report, 
December 2016. 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Wastewater Operations Report for December 2016. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   

The December 2016 Wastewater Operations Report incorporating operations reports for wastewater 
treatment operations, collection system operations, and the reclamation facilities is attached.  

District and Veolia staff will be present at the meeting to provide overviews of the reports for their 
operational areas, and be available to discuss the reports or respond to any questions. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Wastewater Operations Report for the month of December 2016. 

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: This item addresses Goal 1 (Operational Excellence) and Goal 2 
(Reliable and Efficient Facilities) of the latest Strategic Plan Update. 

DEPT. MGR.: JB (Veolia), SRK, DD, EB GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 44 of 96)



Item 7.a.
Attachment 1

(Pages 45 to 89)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 45 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 46 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 47 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 48 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 49 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 50 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 51 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 52 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 53 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 54 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 55 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 56 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 57 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 58 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 59 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 60 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 61 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 62 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 63 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 64 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 65 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 66 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 67 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 68 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 69 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 70 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 71 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 72 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 73 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 74 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 75 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 76 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 77 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 78 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 79 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 80 of 96)



NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 81 of 96)



1.0 General: 
The equivalent of about seven (7) full time employees (FTE) worked in the Collection System 
Department during the month of December. The breakdown of staff time for the month in terms 
of equivalent full-time employee hours utilized, works out approximately as follows:  

• 2.1 FTE field workers for Sewer Maintenance (main line cleaning) 
• 1.1 FTE field workers for Pump Station Maintenance 
• 0.1 FTE field workers for Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) work 
• 1.4 FTE field workers for time spent on data input, training, service calls, overflow 

response, or any other activity that does not directly relate to main line cleaning, CCTV 
work, pump station maintenance, or special activities (for e.g. smoke testing of 
mainlines), and 

• An equivalent of 2.3 FTE field workers for vacation, holiday or sick leave. 
 

2.0 Collection System Maintenance: 
Performance metrics for the department are presented in the attached graphs showing the 
length of line cleaned/month, footage cleaned/hour worked, overflows/month, and the CCTV 
footage achieved. A brief discussion is also provided below. 
Line Cleaning Performance  

A total of 380 work orders were generated for 
December by the ICOM3 Computerized 
Maintenance Management System (CMMS). Staff 
completed the 380 work orders and 16 backlogged 
work orders, leaving 0 work orders outstanding. 
The 396 maintenance work orders completed in 
December resulted in 72,450 feet of sewer 
pipelines cleaned by staff.    
CCTV Performance: 
The District’s CCTV van was in the field for three 
working days in December and televised 21 line 
segments, totaling 3,000 feet of sewer main 
inspected. Production from the CCTV van has 
been limited due to inclement weather and 
breakdowns of the CCTV program. The current 
program is no longer fully supported by the vendor 
and staff has been evaluating other programs to 
replace it. Staff also conducted 9 sewer main 
inspections, totaling 1,617 feet, using the push 
camera.  
CCTV Findings:  

• Infrastructure related: In December, CCTV work did not identify any areas that require 
immediate spot repairs. 

• O&M related: The December CCTV work did not identify any area that required a change in 
sewer line maintenance operations.  
 

 

      Impeller Replacement at Blackpoint Pump Station 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 82 of 96)



3.0 Pump Station Maintenance:  
The Collection System Department conducted 211 lift station inspections this month. 87 of the 
inspections were generated through the District’s JobsCal Plus CMMS system. There are four 
(4) outstanding work orders for the month, zero correctives and four (4) preventives. A 
Collection Systems (Pump Stations) Work Order Statistics summary is attached.  
 
4.0 Air Relief/Vacuum Valves (ARVs): 
Staff completed a maintenance inspection on one (1) air relief/vacuum valve.   
 
5.0 Safety and Training:  
General:  Collection System staff attended four (4) safety 
tailgate meetings in December.  

Specialized training:  Three Collections Department staff 
members participated in a Forklift Certification Field Training 
exercise. 
Safety performance: There were no lost time accidents this 
month for a total of 2,120 accident free days since the last lost 
time accident. 
 
6.0 Minor Projects: 
Staff installed a new impeller and wear ring on Pump #1 at the 
Blackpoint Pump Station due to wear. 
Staff installed a new impeller and wear ring on Pump #1 at the 
Meadow Park Pump Station to reduce pump failures due to 
rags.  
Staff assisted a contractor with replacement of the Pump #1 
overload relay at the Meadow Park Pump Station after 
diagnosing it as faulty. 
Staff troubleshot repeated communication failures at the Meadow Park Pump Station and 
alerted the phone company to a failure of their equipment. Repairs were made, by the phone 
company, over a two-day period. 
Staff assisted a contractor with replacement of the Hardwire Backup Float Alarm relay at the 
Enfrente Pump Station. 
Staff assisted a contractor with the inspection and calibration of all pump station flowmeters. 
During routine cleaning of a sewer main on S. Novato Blvd. at Lauren Dr., the cleaning nozzle 
on a flusher vehicle got stuck in the pipe.  Further investigation found a void in the pipe and the 
sewer line was partially blocked with mud.  A contractor repaired the line the next day. 
 
7.0 Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs): 
There were zero (0) sanitary sewer overflows in December. 
 

******* 

                       Flowmeter inspection 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 83 of 96)



Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
Total Year to 

Date
Average Year 

to Date
A.  Employee Hours Worked             
Number of FTEs (main line cleaning), hrs. 1.9 1.3 1.7 2.0 2.7 2.0 1.7 1.5 0.4 1.1 1.9 2.1 NA 1.7
Number of FTEs (other) 2.5 3.5 3.3 2.8 2.2 2.3 3.3 2.2 3.0 2.6 1.5 1.4 NA 2.5
Number of FTEs (CCTV) 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.0 0.2 0.1 0.1 NA 0.1
Total, FTEs 4.5 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.4 5.3 4.2 3.5 4.0 3.5 3.6 NA 4.4
Regular Time Worked, (main line cleaning), hrs 332 216 282 362 465 362 274 276 78 194 336 365
Regular Time Worked on Other, hrs (1) 426 556 552 496 388 402 534 417 521 441 266 243
Regular Time Worked on CCTV (2) 19 17 0 7 0 16 66 95 4 42 24 15

Total Regular time, worked, hrs 776 788 834 865 853 779 874 788 603 677 626 623 9,085 757
Total Vacation/Sick Leave/Holiday, hrs 225 238 262 89 192 156 127 315 417 209 416 399 3,044 254

Vacation/Sick Leave/Holiday, FTEs 1.3 1.5 1.6 0.5 1.1 0.9 0.8 1.7 2.4 1.2 2.3 2.3 17.6 1.5
Overtime Worked on Coll. Sys., hrs 2 0 0 0 3 8 0 0 0 10 0 0 23 2
Overtime Worked on Other, hrs (1) 65 6 19 30 6 10 14 16 6 14 24 11 220 18
Overtime Worked on CCTV (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

Total Overtime , hrs 67 6 19 30 9 18 16 16 6 24 24 11 245 20
B.  Productivity
1.  Line Cleaning
Rodder Work Orders generated 59 10 41 45 204 64 87 35 9 22 85 50 711 59
Rodder 3208 ft. cleaned 11,888 2,289 8,682 9,749 36,994 10,476 13,754 5,308 0 4,379 15,877 9,276 128,672 10,723
Rodder - outside services, ft cleaned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Flusher Work Orders generated 227 237 307 350 248 268 221 194 128 221 276 330 3,007 251
Truck 3205V ft. cleaned 14,729 6,341 5,004 5,886 2,776 4,295 0 2,217 2,072 9,995 4,292 14,973 72,580 6,048
Truck 3206V ft. cleaned 38,305 39,088 52,713 61,606 42,516 49,467 45,445 36,441 14,950 20,539 48,230 48,201 497,501 41,458
Flusher - outside services, ft. cleaned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

Total Footage cleaned(3) 64,922 47,718 66,399 77,241 82,286 64,238 59,199 43,966 17,022 34,913 68,399 72,450 698,753 58,229
Work Orders completed 278 247 348 395 452 332 424 377 102 169 345 396 3,865 322
Work Orders backlog 8 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 35 74 16 NA 133 33
2. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)
Camera Work Orders generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CCTV Truck  3126T, ft. videoed 843 540 0 541 0 652 10,374 12,498 186 4,863 4,261 3,000 37,758 3,147
CCTV (hand cam), ft. videoed 1,669 0 456 2,210 0 1,754 5,487 793 0 0 10,731 1,617 24,717
CCTV Inspection - outside services, ft. videoed 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,322 0 0 0 0 0 12,322  

Total CCTV footage(3) 2,512 540 456 2,751 0 2,406 28,183 13,291 186 4,863 14,992 4,617 74,797
C.  Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) 4 2 5 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 15 NA
Minor (Category III) 3 1 4 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 10 NA
Major (Category II) 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 NA
Major (Category I) 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 NA
Overflow Gallons 482 290,330 2,308 20 0 540 0 0 75 7,900 0 0 301,655 NA
Volume Recovered 130 147,250 760 20 0 165 0 0 75 50 0 0 148,450 NA
Percent Recovered 27% 51% 33% 100% NA 31% NA NA 100% 1% NA NA 49% NA
D.  Service Calls (non-SSO related)
Service calls, normal hours, # 8 7 8 4 5 9 4 4 9 6 8 10 82 7
Normal hours S.C. response time, mins (avg.) 20 17 18 17 16 25 13 25 12 15 22 13 213 18
Service Callouts, after hours, # 5 3 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 17 1
After Hours S.C. response time, mins (avg.) 17 27 16 60 35 0 0 16 54 23 17 20 285 24
E.  Benchmarks
Average Ft. Cleaned/Hour Worked 196 221 235 213 177 178 216 159 218 180 204 198 NA 200
Total Stoppages/100 Miles 1.8 0.9 2.2 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 6.5 NA
Average spill response time (mins) 15 31 11 11 0 15 0 0 23 18 0 0 NA 10
Callouts/100 Miles 2.2 1.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.9 0.4 0.4 7.4 0.6
Overtime hours/100 Miles 1 0 0 0 1 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 10.22 1
Overflow Gallons/100 Miles 210 126,230 1,003 9 0 235 0 0 33 3435 0 -                131,154         10930

(2)This category separates time spent on CCTV from other Collection System maintenance activities.
(3) Does not include outside services (tracked separately)

Novato Sanitary District
Collection System Monthly Report For December 2016 (as of December 31, 2016)

(1)This category includes time spent on: Data input, Training, Service Calls, Overflow Response, as well as any other activity that does not directly relate to main line cleaning or CCTV work.

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 84 of 96)



Collection System: 2016 & 2015 Graphs

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

2016  Footage Cleaned, ft 2015 Footage Cleaned, ft

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Cleaning Efficiency

2016 Avg. Ft. Cleaned/Hour Worked

2015 Avg. Ft. Cleaned/Hour Worked

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

Stoppages/100 miles

2016 Stoppages/100 miles 2015 Stoppages/100 Miles

0.0

5,000.0

10,000.0

15,000.0

20,000.0

25,000.0

30,000.0

CCTV Footage, ft

2016  CCTV Footage, ft 2015 CCTV Footage, ft

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 85 of 96)



Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
Total Year 

to Date

Average 
Year to 
Date

Employee Hours Worked 238 185 252 238 235 251 186 242 254 355 253 245 2,933
Number of Employees (FTEs) 1.4 1.0 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.2 0.9 1.1 1.1 1.8 1.1 1.1 1.2
Regular Time Worked on Pump Sta 183 157 210 194 202 217 148 207 196 298 205 186 2,402
Overtime Worked on Pump Sta 55 28 43 44 33 34 38 35 58 57 49 59 532
After Hours Callouts 4 1 8 2 0 1 4 6 1 3 4 3 37
Average Callout response time (mins) 30 10 34 28 0 15 31 25 45 10 42 31 301 25

Work Orders
Number generated in month 136 106 89 92 115 91 95 107 78 116 101 87 1213 101
Number closed in month 111 106 89 92 115 91 93 107 69 110 97 87 1167 97
Backlog 25 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 9 6 4 0 46 4

Novato Sanitary District

Pump Station Report For December 2016 (As of December 31, 2016)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 86 of 96)



Open Work Orders 
Due Prior to 12/1/2016

Open Work Orders 
12/1/2016-12/31/2016

Total Open 
Work Orders

Preventive 4 150 154
Corrective 0 0 0

Total 4 150 154

Closed Work Orders 
12/1/2016 - 12/31/2016

Preventive 148
Corrective 0

Total 148

Total 
Outstanding 
Work Orders as 
of 12/31/2016 6

JOB CAL CMMS
WORK ORDER STATISTICS 

December 1, 2016-December 31, 2016

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 87 of 96)



1.0 Summary: 
There were no ranching or irrigation activities this month.  December rains filled the 
drainage ditches and added a substantial amount of rainwater to the storage ponds this 
month. 
 
2.0 Ranch Operations:  
There are no reportable actions for ranch operations. 
3.0 Irrigation Parcels: 
As reported last month, staff discovered that some of the piping for the air relief valves on 
the discharge lines at Drainage Pump Station No. 7 had corroded to a point that it needs to 
be replaced.  Staff requested a quote from a local contractor, the quote was approved, and 
work is scheduled to be completed once the new parts are received. 
 
4.0 Irrigation Pump Station: 
There were no irrigation activities this month.  The December rains added approximately 10 
MG of rain water to the storage ponds this month. 
 
5.0 Sludge Handling & Disposal:  
There were no sludge handling activities this month. 
 
     

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 88 of 96)



January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total Year to 

Date

Annualized 
Monthly 
Average

Irrigation Pump Station
Plant flow to ponds (MG) 0 0 0 0 0 90 86.1 90.72 93.36 124.14 0 0 484.3           40.36
Irrigation (MG) 0 0 0.0 0 0 33.83 69.51 72.89 64.77 66.18 0 0 307.2           25.60
Irrigation Pump 1 Hours 76.9 86.5 0 100.3 109.3 0 0 373.0           31.08
Irrigation Pump 2 Hours 75.8 134 190.3 139.9 108.3 0 0 648.3           54.03
Irrigation Pump 3 Hours 76.3 117.4 187.9 131 101.4 0 0 614.0           51.17
Washdown Water Pump Hours -               0.00
Wildlife Feed Pump Hours 744 696 744 720 744 696 770.5 741.9 720.8 647.2 720 720 8,664.4       722.03
Water Circulated through Wildlife Pond (MG) 46.872 43.848 46.872 45.36 47 44 49 46.74 45.41 40.77 45.36 45.36 545.9           45.49
Strainer No. 1 Hours 23.9 41.5 47.1 47.1 40 0 0 199.6           16.63
Strainer No. 2 Hours 18.8 41.8 47.2 47.1 40 0 0 194.9           16.24
Pond 1 Gauge @ Beginning of Month 3.1 3.9 3.9 4.4 4 3.5 5.8 5.7 5.7 6.2 7.2 7.6
Pond 1 Gauge @ End of Month 3.9 3.9 4.4 4 3.5 5.8 5.7 5.7 6.2 7.2 7.6 8.1
Pond 1 Gallons Stored @ End of Month(MG) 27.2 27.2 31.2 28 24 43 42 42 46.8 54.6 57.8 62
Pond 2 Gauge @ Beginning of Month 3.1 3.9 3.9 4.4 4 3.5 5.8 5.7 5.7 6.2 7.2 7.6
Pond 2 Gauge @ End of Month 3.9 3.9 4.4 4 3.5 5.8 5.7 5.7 6.2 7.2 7.6 8.1
Pond 2 Gallons Stored @ End of Month(MG) 35 35 40 36 31 55 54 54 59.4 70 74.2 80
Total Irrigation Water Stored 62.2 62.2 71.2 64 55 98 96 96 106.2 124.6 132 142

Drainage Pump Station No. 3
Drainage Pump No. 1 Hours 341.4 0.2 386 15.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.9 0 743.6
Drainage Pump No. 2 Hours 0 34.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1.9 8.8 16.6 62
Drainage Pump No. 3 Hours 0 1.9 0.1 0 0 0 0 0 0 91.3 52.6 38.9 184.8
Total Gallons Stormwater Pumped (MG) 102.42 11.04 115.83 4.53 0 0 0 0 0 27.96 18.69 16.65 297.12 24.76

Drainage Pump Station No. 7
Drainage Pump No. 1 Hours 131.7 0.2 72.4 3.4 0.2 0 0 0 0 0 0.1 23.7 231.7
Drainage Pump No. 2 Hours 14.2 13 0 0 0.7 0 0 0 0 2 48.7 152 230.6
Drainage Pump No. 3 Hours 2.9 0 41.3 12.2 0.6 0 0 0 0 58.9 30.7 0 146.6
Total Gallons Stormwater Pumped (MG) 66.96 6 51 7.02 0.675 0 0 0 0 27.41 35.775 79.065 274.005 22.83

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT
Reclamation Facility - Monthly Statistics for Calendar Year 2016, as of December 2016

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 89 of 96)



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Capital Projects: Collection 
System Improvements (Bel Marin 
Keys Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation 
Project), Account No. 72706. 

MEETING DATE:  January 9, 2017  
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve one change order in the amount of $5,500.00, grant 
Final Acceptance of the Project, and authorize staff to file the Notice of Completion. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 
On August 22, 2016, the District’s Board of Directors awarded the Contract for the Bel Marin 
Keys Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation Project to Michels Pipeline Construction for a low bid 
amount of $324,394.00. The Notice to Proceed was issued on October 3, 2016, and 
substantial completion was reached on November 10, 2016. 
 
At this time, the Contractor has completed the work and the project is ready for final 
acceptance. One change order totaling $5,500.00, or 1.7% of the project cost, was issued to 
the contractor during the work for repair of a 6” sewer main entering a manhole within the 
project limits. 
 
The final cost of the project is $329,894.00.  It is recommended that the change order be 
approved, final acceptance be granted, and staff be authorized to file the Notice of 
Completion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION: This item addresses Goal 1 (Operational Excellence) 
and Goal 2 (Build and Maintain Safe, Reliable, and Efficient Facilties) of the latest Strategic 
Plan Update. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  The FY16-17 budget for Account No. 72706 includes a budget 
amount of $1,200,000, of which $382,853.58 has been expended to date. Also, under 
Account No. 72706, approximately $575,000 has been committed to other projects and 
related expenditures. 
 DEPT. MGR.: srk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
 

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 90 of 96)



NOTICE OF  

REORGANIZATION 

NOVATO CITY COUNCIL 

At its December 6, 2016 meeting, the Novato City Council 

reorganized as follows: 

Mayor  Denise Athas 

Mayor Pro Tem Josh Fryday 

Councilmember Pam Drew 

Councilmember Pat Eklund 

Councilmember Eric Lucan 

Laura McDowall 

Deputy City Clerk 

922 Machin Avenue 
Novato, CA 94945 
415/899-8900 
FAX 415/899-8213 
www.novato.org 

Mayor 
   Denise Athas 
Mayor Pro Tem 
   Josh Fryday 
Councilmembers 
   Pam Drew 
   Pat Eklund 
   Eric Lucan 

City Manager 
   Regan M. Candelario 

Item 10.a.

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 91 of 96)

julieh
Rectangle



12/21/2016 CalPERS Votes to Increase Contributions

If you are on a mobile device or want to view this as a web page, please click here.
To ensure receipt of our email, please add 'CSDA@informz.net' to your address book.

CalPERS Votes to Increase Contributions
Today, the CalPERS Board voted to approve a continued reduction to its discount rate, the assumed annual
rate of return for the pension fund. This latest reduction follows a November 2015 plan to reduce the fund’s
overall discount rate from 7.5 percent to 6.5 percent over the next 20 years.

During today’s meeting in Sacramento, the board approved that the discount rate be lowered to 7.375 percent
in fiscal year 201819, 7.25 percent in 201920, and 7 percent in 202021 for public agencies; a decision that
had been in the works for some time. 

Over the last decade, the fund has experienced continued low investment returns and is currently only 68
percent funded while experiencing an annual cash flow shortfall of five billion dollars. Economic indicators
warned that failing to increase CalPERS cash flow could result in an additional increase of one billion dollars
annually to the fund’s shortfall. 

To make up for anticipated low investment returns, CalPERS had made plans to reduce the discount rate,
which will require greater contributions from employers and employees to make up the difference. 

The decision to reduce the discount rate using a threeyear phasedin approach was the direct result of the
comments received by CalPERS contract agencies. This group included many of CSDA’s members who
provided our advocacy team with valuable feedback during preliminary discussions of the plan. 

CSDA members indicated that while they would not support direct advocacy for a rate increase, they
understood the increase as necessary action to ensure the health of the fund. The phasedin approach was the
preferred method to increasing rates to improve cash flow to the fund instead of an immediate reduction to a
seven percent rate. 

A reduction of the discount rate affects special districts and all of CalPERS contract agencies by requiring an
increase of the contributions paid into the fund by both employers and employees. 

Should you have any questions about the actions being taken by CalPERS, please contact CSDA Legislative
Representative, Dillon Gibbons, at dillong@csda.net.

California Special Districts Association | 1112 I Street | Suite 200 | Sacramento, CA 95814

If you do not wish to receive email newsletters from CSDA, click here to unsubscribe. Please note: unsubscribing from individual mailings will
unsubscribe you from all mailings, including the CSDA eNews  one of CSDA’s major benefits and sources of news to our members.

Item 10.b.

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 92 of 96)

http://csda.informz.net/clk/vcar.asp?v=41
mailto:dillong@csda.net
http://www.csda.net/?utm_source=informz&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=electronic+newsletter
http://www.facebook.com/specialdistrict
http://twitter.com/specialdistrict
http://pod3.informz.net/clk/red8.asp?u=763596243&mi=5797563&l=1
julieh
Rectangle



12/21/2016 CalPERS board gives green light to cut assumed rate of return to 7%  Pensions & Investments

View reprint
options

Order a reprint article
now

Ken James/Bloomberg

This copy is for your personal, noncommercial use only. Reproductions and distribution of this news story are strictly prohibited.

CalPERS board gives green light to cut assumed rate of return to 7%
By: Randy Diamond
Published: December 21, 2016

The full CalPERS board approved Wednesday a plan to reduce the pension fund's rate of
return to 7% from the current 7.5% over a threeyear period.

The action follows the recommendation of CalPERS' finance and administration committee
Tuesday night.

California Gov. Edmund G. “Jerry” Brown Jr., who in the past has criticized the $303.6 billion
California Public Employees' Retirement System, Sacramento, for having unrealistic
investment return assumptions, issued a statement in support of the action.

“Today's action by the CalPERS board is more reflective of the financial returns they can
expect in the future,” Mr. Brown said. “This will make for a more sustainable system.”

The reduction in the rate of return is not as big as was discussed last month. Chief Investment
Officer Theodore Eliopoulos said at last month's finance and administration committee meeting that given diminished
investment return assumptions over the next decade, 6% was a more realistic return for the coming 10 years.

Andrew Junkin, president of Wilshire Consulting, which serves as CalPERS' general consultant, said at the November meeting
that Wilshire was predicting an annual return of 6.21% for the next decade, down from its estimates of 7.1% a year earlier.

The change comes as representatives of California cities, towns, school districts and other governmental units that contribute to
the nation's largest defined benefit plan argue that they could not afford the contributions necessary with a lower return rate.

California state Controller Betty Yee, a member of the finance and administration committee, said at Tuesday's meeting that she
can predict the headlines Wednesday. “There will be headlines tomorrow about how we were not aggressive enough,” Ms. Yee
said of the 7% rate of return, adding that the reduction will be noted around the world.

But Ms. Yee said the rate reduction will help stabilize the pension fund and added that CalPERS' falling funding ratio is a symbol
of the changing world economy.

CalPERS' current funding ratio is 68%. Two years of poor results — a 0.6% return for the fiscal year ended June 30 and a 2.4%
return in fiscal 2015 — have contributed to a more negative view of what CalPERS can earn over the next decade.

Mr. Eliopoulos, in explaining how the investment staff came up with the 7% rate of return, said it was based on a longerterm 30-
year forecast that shows better investment returns, not a 10year horizon.

Mr. Junkin said at the November meeting that CalPERS might not survive past 10 years if the rate of return was not lowered but
never specified how much the return should be reduced.

Under the threeyear reduction, phased in to soften the blow on employers, the rate of return for the pension fund would be
lowered to 7.375% for the fiscal year starting July 1, 2017; 7.25% for the following fiscal year; and 7% for the year after that.

CalPERS is far from the only public pension plan lowering its return assumption. Statistics from the National Association of
State Retirement Administrators show that 43 of 137 public plans have lowered their return assumption since June 30, 2014. But
NASRA statistics show only nine plans out of 127 are below 7% and none has gone below 6.5%.

Item 10.c.
(Pages 93 to 94)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 93 of 96)

http://www.pionline.com/reprints
http://www.pionline.com/reprints
http://www.pionline.com/staff/rdiamond
julieh
Rectangle



12/21/2016 CalPERS board gives green light to cut assumed rate of return to 7%  Pensions & Investments

View reprint
options

Order a reprint article
now

Original Story Link: http://www.pionline.com/article/20161221/ONLINE/161229971/calpers-board-gives-green-light-to-
cut-assumed-rate-of-return-to-7

This copy is for your personal, noncommercial use only. Reproductions and distribution of this news story are strictly prohibited.

To order presentationready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or customers and/or request permission to use the article in full or
partial format please contact our Reprint Sales Manager at 732723-0569.

Copyright © 2016 Crain Communications Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Privacy Policy | Terms & Conditions

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 94 of 96)

http://www.pionline.com/reprints
http://www.pionline.com/reprints
http://www.pionline.com/article/20161221/ONLINE/161229971/calpers-board-gives-green-light-to-cut-assumed-rate-of-return-to-7
http://www.crain.com/
http://www.pionline.com/privacy
http://www.pionline.com/terms


1/3/2017 Novato water meter reader fakes data, customers’ bills spike

Marin Independent Journal (http://www.marinij.com)

Novato water meter reader fakes data, customers’ bills spike

Reader fired after using false data

By Mark Prado, Marin Independent Journal

Thursday, November 17, 2016

A water meter reader gone rogue is leading to some higherthanusual water bills for North Marin Water District
customers in Novato.

Water district officials reported getting an unusually high number of complaints from customers about pricey
bills in September and October.

“All the calls we got triggered an investigation,” said Chris DeGabriele, general manager of the district.

It turned out there was a reason for the spike. Customers were undercharged over the summer by a meter reader
who apparently was estimating water use, instead of logging in actual totals as he entered figures into his hand
held computer while making his rounds in the field.

When bills were adjusted to reflect actual use, the makeup tallies made it appear as though customers were
using more water in the period than they actually did. Those catchup counts of water catapulted users into
higher — and more expensive — tiers of water use, even though their usage was stable.

Water officials say customers will have those fees waived. In fact, because it is having trouble identifying which
customers’ meters were not read, all tier charges will be waived from the Nov. 10 through Jan. 5 billing cycles.
That move approved by the water board Tuesday will cost the district at least $50,000 in revenue. The district
has an overall budget of about $35 million.

About 15 to 20 percent of the district’s roughly 60,000 customers are affected. Because meters are read once
every two months, bills received this month or in December may include a catchup cost arising from the prior
underreported meter reading.

After the complaints came in about high bills, water district officials conducted an audit. They noticed July and
August meter readings were abnormally low for summer, a time when water consumption typically increases as
the days grow warmer. Initially, water officials were perplexed at the low readings.

Eventually staffers discovered the employee “had been recording a significant number of meter reads in quick
succession,” wrote David Bentley, the water district’s auditor controller, in a report on the investigation. “The
handheld computer into which the (employee) enters meter reads time stamps each read. Staff discovered that
an (employee) hired in May of 2015 was reading meters at a speed that defied reason.”

Some of the meters were read in less than 10 seconds, according to general manager DeGabriele.

“That’s when we knew something was amiss,” he said.

The worker apparently figured that if he entered a low total, customers wouldn’t complain and he wouldn’t have
to read every meter.

Item 10.d.
(Pages 95 to 96)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 95 of 96)

http://www.marinij.com/
julieh
Rectangle



1/3/2017 Novato water meter reader fakes data, customers’ bills spike

The employee was confronted and he admitted he had been “just punching in the numbers” and he was fired,
according to Bentley’s report.

“We really have no idea (why),” DeGabriele said.

It will take another six weeks of readings to accurately assess water use in areas that were read incorrectly. New
controls are being put into place, including random field audits to assure readings are correct. Other mechanisms
will alert supervisors if reads are occurring too fast.

In addition, the water district is planning to install “advanced meter information” equipment to enable remote,
more accurate meter reading rather than the traditional manual process within the next two years.

“We do apologize to all our customers for this,” DeGabriele said.

URL: http://www.marinij.com/general-news/20161 117/novato-water -meter -reader -fakes-data-customers-bills-spike

© 2017 Marin Independent Journal (http://www.marinij.com)

NSD Agenda Packet 
Jan. 9, 2017 (Page 96 of 96)

http://www.marinij.com/

	Agenda 01-09-17
	AGENDA
	Note: All times and order of consideration for agenda items are for reference only. The Board of Directors may consider item(s) in a different order than set forth herein.

	4.a. Dec 12 minutes
	5. Deposit Summary for December 2016
	5.a.1. Board Fees Check Register for December 2016
	5.a.2. Operating Check Register for December 27, 2016
	5.a.3. Operating Check Register for January 9, 2017
	5.a.4. Capital Projects Check Register for December 27, 2016
	5.a.5. Capital Projects Check Register for January 9, 2017
	5.b. Payroll and Related Check Register for December 2016
	5.d. Summary - FTR submittal to State Controller's Office
	5.d.1. Special Districts Financial Transactions Report filing 2016
	sco report 2016

	5.f. Summary - Temp Discharge Permit (Ghilotti-NMWD)
	6.a. Summary - PARS Trust Program update
	6.a.1. IGD (GASB 45 - OPEB)
	Investment Guidelines Document
	Scope and Purpose
	Investment Authority:  Except as otherwise noted, the Trustee, US Bank, has delegated investment authority to HighMark Capital Management, an SEC-registered investment adviser. Investment Manager has full investment discretion over the managed assets...
	Investment Objectives and Constraints
	Duties and Responsibilities
	Acknowledgement and Acceptance



	6.a.2. IGD (GASB 68 - NPL)
	Investment Guidelines Document
	Scope and Purpose
	Investment Authority:  Except as otherwise noted, the Trustee, US Bank, has delegated investment authority to HighMark Capital Management, an SEC-registered investment adviser. Investment Manager has full investment discretion over the managed assets...
	Investment Objectives and Constraints
	Duties and Responsibilities
	Acknowledgement and Acceptance



	6.b. Summary - Board meeting start time
	6.b.1. Policy 5010 - Board Meetings
	POLICY HANDBOOK

	6.b.2. Resolution 3501
	6.c. MarinLAFCO-CallNominations-Packet_12-13-16
	MarinLAFCO-CallNominations_12-13-16
	MarinLAFCO_SpecialDistrictElection_FlowChart
	Slide Number 1

	Listing of Independent Special Districts
	MarinLAFCO_SpecialDistrict-SelectionPolicies

	7.a.1. WWOps Report - Dec 2016
	7.a.2. Collection System Operations Report December 2016
	742. CSystem Operations Reports - December 2016.pdf
	2016CS
	2016 CS Graphs
	2016PS

	74. December 2016 PS Work Orders.pdf
	Sheet1


	7.a.3. Recl Rprt Dec 2016 - 1
	7.a.3b. Recl Stats Dec 2016 - 2.pdf
	2016


	8.a. Summary - BMK Trunk Sewer Rehab NOC
	10.a. Notice of City Council Reorganization
	10.b. CSDA article - CalPERS Votes to Increase Contributions
	10.c. P&I article - CalPERS board gives green light to cut assumed rate of return to 7% - Pensions & Investments
	10.d. Marin IJ article - Novato water meter reader fakes data, customers’ bills spike



